
TULARE COUNTY WATER COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

August 13, 2012 
 
 
Members Present: 

Allen Ishida, Board Representative and Chairman 
Mike Ennis, Board Alternate Representative 
Mark Larsen, District 3 Appointee 
Richard L. Schafer, District 5 Appointee 
Keith Watkins, At-Large Appointee 
Paul Boyer, District 1 Appointee 

 
Members Absent: 

Rudy Mendoza, TCAG Representative 
Chris Kapheim, District 4 Appointee 
Dale Brogan, District 2 Appointee 
Laurel Firestone, At-Large Appointee 
Dennis Keller, At-Large Appointee 

 
Staff Present: 

Denise Akins, Tulare County Administrative Office 
Julieta Martinez, Tulare County Board of Supervisors  
Arlene Silva, County Counsel 
Michael Hickey, Tulare County RMA, GIS 

 
Members of the Public who voluntarily provided their names on the attendance sheet: 

Carole Clum 
Michael Tharp 
Shane Smith 
Elvira Reyes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Public Comment Period 
 

Carole Clum of Three Rivers provided two handouts to the Commissioners in regards to droughts. 
See attachment A. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes From July 9, 2012 Meeting 
 

No Quorum. 
 

4. Presentation from Bill Whiteside of Blue Sky Water Solutions LLC 
 

Bill Whiteside was present to discuss Primary Water. He defined it as water that rises to the surface of the earth 
through cracks and fissures that is not yet in the hydrological cycle.  He stated it is a source of all earth water.  He 
showed a video featuring Paul Power drilling wells that tapped into primary water. 
 
Mr. Whiteside stated that there is a need in Tulare County for additional water and that primary water could help 
disadvantaged communities.  He shared with the commissioners some press releases and news reports and asked 
for further direction or suggestions. 
 



Chairman Ishida shared with Mr. Whiteside that the presentation is not surprising and that it should make sense to 
most of the Commissioners. He proceeded to say the problem we have with these communities is that drilling a 
well costs about a million dollars and a well like the ones described by Mr. Whiteside would increase that cost.  
Chairman Ishida then stated that we have a cost factor that is against us. 
 
Bill Whiteside expressed his thought that the location of a well would determine if costs are greater and that the 
process may be easier than we imagine.   
 
Commissioner Schafer asked if Mr. Whiteside was stating that primary water is water that is underground and if 
he was proposing that there are means by which you can locate where that water is situated.  He also questioned if 
this process was used with a machine and based upon topography maps. 
 
Mr. Whiteside stated that the information was correct. 
 
Commissioner Schafer shared with the other commissioners that he is familiar with the topography of this area as 
well as Three Rivers.  He stated that a bore hole of about 800 feet deep there is fractured rock and solid granite 
along the way.   

 
Michael Tharp gave input on problems he is familiar with. 

 
Mr. Whiteside stated there is work being done south of Porterville working with a citrus grower to determine if 
there is primary water available, he indicated that the success of finding primary water is dependent upon location. 
 He explained that Mr. Powers supervises the projects and ensures drilling occurs in areas that have primary 
water. 

 
There was some discussion on the methodology of locating and drilling for primary water.  Commissioner Boyer 
asked if primary water was dictated by underlying geography and also questioned the quality of the water relative 
to total dissolved solids.  

 
Mr. Whiteside responded that it is not necessarily pinned to a particular kind of rock and that typically the water is 
of good quality. 
 

5. Update on Tulare Lake Basin Disadvantaged Community Water Study 
 

Denise Akins re-stated what the pilot projects were and shared with the Commissioners that there is now an 
engineering group that is working diligently on various solutions.  She also stated that the Board of Supervisors 
approved the Stakeholder Oversight Advisory Committee (SOAC) to continue to meet through the next couple 
phases of the projects.  She commented that the next meeting will be around the first week of December to start 
making policy recommendations.  

 
Chairman Ishida asked Ms. Akins if she could give the Water Commission an idea of what direction the SOAC 
was heading in. 

 
Ms. Akins stated that the SOAC has driven the selection of priority issues and has identified several broad 
solutions.  The next step is to have the consultant group delve into specifics and generate cost estimates and 
feasibility analyses the SOAC is planning to create guidebook to help them get through the feasibility stage and go 
straight to a construction grant.  She also shared that there will be a matrix of solutions that can apply to all 
communities throughout the basin. 

 
Commissioner Schafer asked if there would be constructed facilities. 

 
Ms. Akins replied by saying that the grant excludes construction. 

 
Commissioner Boyer commented that he was not sure that we are going to get the solutions we want to all the 
problems but it is a step in the right direction. He also stated that he thinks there is some money to look at specific 
communities that fit into certain situations. 

 



Chairman Ishida stated that some of the basic things are that there needs to be some consolidation of services. 
  

Commissioner Boyer stated that although we cannot go to communities and say “this is your solution” there are 
frameworks, but they will only work if communities participate and are motivated themselves. 

 
Ms. Akins shared that she participated in a meeting with Alpaugh, Allensworth, and Richgrove to begin to 
facilitate community driven solutions.  She indicated that the meetings came out of the SOAC process.  This is 
one example of projects gaining momentum through this study. 

 
6. Subcommittee Reports 
 

Commissioner Schafer stated that there are numerous bills in the legislature that have been crafted to assist the 
disadvantaged communities and establish statutes that would allow funding of a resolution of those disadvantaged 
communities’ water problems.  He expressed a desire to have the Nitrate Subcommittee to become active again.  
He identified several new regulatory programs that are gaining momentum and the Tulare County Water 
Commission may need to be involved. 

 
Commissioner Schafer also wanted to pass along his congratulations to the Board of Supervisors for the July 31st 
Letter of concern regarding the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program Draft General Order written by Denise Akins. 
 He expressed that the letter was well written and on point but he wouldn’t expect too much results since  the 
Southern San Joaquin Valley Water Coalition has been working with the Central Valley Regional Board since 
March on the draft general order with little success.  He stated that based on the current draft we may have 
obtained a few word changes in the entire draft but the bottom line is that we have a serious issue when they 
identify that the Regional Board expects that 23,000 acres of land will go bankrupt and be taken out of production 
due to the increase of costs inflicted by the Board with the Irrigated Lands Program.  

 
Commissioner Schafer commented that the report offered no real solutions and there should be another way to 
solve this problem.  He explained that it would come before the public in February of next year based on the 
current program schedule.   

 
Chairman Ishida shared that the letter approved on July 31st was sent out to all eight counties in the San Joaquin 
Valley asking them to send similar letters to the Regional Board. He stated that the projected costs are up to 
$120/acre per year which is 3 to 4 times higher than the property tax and will put more than 100 thousand acres 
out of business all without a scientific foundation.  He is hoping to put political pressure on the Central Valley 
Regional Board.   

 
Commissioner Boyer stated that he didn’t think anyone present that did not want safe drinking water and he was 
wondering about the economic effects of acres going out of business.  He stated that if you look at communities 
such as Allensworth and Alpaugh, there problem is that the water contains arsenic.  He commented that not 
farming or fertilizing in those areas will really change the situation.  He stated that he is hoping that it will be 
looked at in a way of where should we target things and have solutions with estimated costs because when we 
send money to Sacramento it doesn’t seem like we get it all back. 

 
Commissioner Larsen shared that postcards had been sent to landowners in regards to the August 21st Regional 
Board meeting at 10:00am to discuss their new direction as described by Commissioner Schafer as well as to 
solicit comments.  He also suggested that farm owners attend this meeting.  He stated he was aware that the Tulare 
County farm bureau has also sent out notices.  He said one thing is the 120 dollars per acre has come from the 
environmental documentation the Board did.  He stated his understanding of the $120/acre fee is that it is not a 
direct fee but an additional cost landowners will pay for a third party to help make alterations to land to best deal 
with water situations as well as other things. 

 
Chairman Ishida posed the question if Kaweah Delta Water Conservation District is going to do monitoring for 
individual farming. 

 
Commissioner Larsen shared that the monitoring that is done is supposed to be representative of the area and the 
landowner will be able to say they are part of a coalition that is doing monitoring.  

 



Commissioner Schafer added to the comments by saying that wherever there is an indication of nitrates in an area 
the Regional Board will require the program to have four monitoring wells per section, four wells per section for 
trend monitoring.  He stated that long range programs would be used initially to characterize the quality of water, 
which is how the coalition would interface with landowners.  He shared that these landowners transfer obligation 
to a coalition also known as the third party and that it is going to take a huge administrative effort to set up the 
program.  He stated that either way farmers or landowners will pay the costs.   

 
 

Commissioner Watkins asked if the Coalition was going to try to gather the rest of growers to get them to sign up 
again or if it was leaving it to them to come to us. 

 
Commissioner Larsen commented that the Kaweah District is trying to educate farmers by communicating to them 
that they have an opportunity to sign up because the Central Valley Regional Board is letting them do so even if 
the coalition has to sign up as third party. 

 
Chairman Ishida commented on the fact that Senator Rubio previously held a meeting in the County and folks that 
attended made a great impression on him.  He stated that the meeting resulted in the Senator writing to the 
Regional Board.  He also stated that he was sure the County will get other legislative support.  He then asked the 
other Commissioners to tell people in other meetings to put pressure on other Board of Supervisors statewide, 
especially in the valley, to do whatever possible to help. 

 
Commissioner Larsen mentioned that Channel 26 will feature this program tonight and has interviewed farmers 
and Regional Board members in Fresno to get input. 

 
Michael Hickey of the Resource Management Agency (RMA) explained the State Board conducted a gamma 
study that did one time sampling of about 200 wells that extend into the foothills and valley with about 50 having 
nucleation studies where you could source and age the water.  He suggested that the Water Commission request 
from RMA Planning Division to outline the steps involved and then do an analysis of where these wells are and if 
they have source data.  He stated that they could locate the distance from water sources as well as land use then 
and now and look for some indication to proceed if worthy of further debate.  He suggested that the Water 
Commission give direction to Michael Spata. 

 
Arlene Silva from County Counsel stated that it would be appropriate for the Water Commission to request the 
Board of Supervisors to give direction to Michael Spata. 

 
Commissioner Larsen suggested drafting what Mr. Hickey had verbalized so that it could be put into action. 

 
Commissioner Schafer stated that he tried on several occasions to obtain the specific wells that Dr. Harter used in 
his study and he has been totally unsuccessful.  He stated that they did no want to give out the data being used.  
He went on to say that they are not precise in the location and that every time he has asked he has been told that 
they do not know exactly where they are but the data is there.  

 
Mr. Hickey shared the possibility of side stepping since the gamma study was a sampling of wells.  He stated that 
he and Susan Shaw put together a list and number that were given to the study.  He said he had a table on 50 wells 
that the study was done on as well as the nuclear result.  He mentioned nothing will happen until someone puts 
data together. 

 
Chairman Ishida stated that it was a great idea and as a farmer himself he would like to know the facts.  

 
Mr. Tharp stated that we continue to develop wells everyday in the county and people file permits with RMA.  He 
said that as part of that process they are require to sample wells for nitrate only if it domestic. He went on to say 
that he thinks they should require well tests of quality across the board one time as they are drilled and it would be 
a constant source of data.  He stated that Mr. Hickey has 5 year old data we are still trying to incorporate and he 
needs support in GIS to allow him to use that data.  

 
Chairman Ishida suggested we ask Counsel if we were to collect this information how would we preserve it as 
private information that has the same protection that the state has when they gather theirs.  



 
Ms. Silva stated that we do have confidentiality agreements with the state and it has been an issue in the past with 
this commission.  She commented on the fact that Commissioner Laurel Firestone had been unsuccessful in a fight 
to get addresses and she did not know if gamma and addresses are one in the same.   

 
Chairman Ishida stated that this would be an ordinance that when you apply for a permit you have to provide a 
nitrate test.  He asked if that information became confidential or public.  

 
Ms. Silva stated that we may have issues with homeland security but she would look into it.  

 
Mr. Tharp stated that wherever the information comes from it can go to Mr. Hickey and he has the confidentiality 
component in control.   

 
7. Staff Reports 
 

No staff report. 
 

8. Commissioners Comments 
 

Commissioner Boyer shared the news that the Pixley Public Utility District just got a contract to do a planning 
grant which includes drilling a test well to replace three wells that don’t comply with arsenic standards.  He didn’t 
say how long they had been waiting but now it is approved.   
 
Commissioner Boyer gave an update to comments made at the last meeting’s minutes. 
He stated that on the farm bill part of the concern on the last minutes was that two things were happening, one was 
increasing ceiling population but at same time saying that if you were near 50,000 population area you would not 
quality. 
He commented that since then the final senate version has been released and it stated that if you were eligible you 
will remain eligible after the bill passes.   
 
Commissioner Schafer offered a comment on Success Dam.  He stated that the Army Corps held a technical 
meeting the last part of July and the first part of August.  He stated that the week’s discussion was on safety issue 
of Success Dam. The Corps has determined that the Dam is safe from an earthquake.  Second, he commented that 
there was concern in regards to seepage through the Dam and now based on guidelines the Dam is safe with 
respect to seepage.  Last he shared that they have developed new hydrology and have determined the spill way is 
now adequate.  He shared that the bottom line of this weeks meeting is that Success Dam is again safe after being 
in operation for 50 years. 
 
Commissioner Larsen asked about enlarging the Dam. 
 
Commissioner Schafer responded that he had dialogue with the Army Corps on setting up a meeting to proceed 
with the enlargement project and the response was that they still aren’t ready to proceed.   

 
Commissioner Larsen sated that the Kaweah River Integrated Regional Water Management Planning group has 
been noticed by DWR of their intent to fund a planning grant to further develop their Plan.  He stated that they 
actually scored second highest in the grant application. 
 
Chairman Ishida shared that there is a vacancy on the Commission due to Laurel Firestone resigning and that the 
Board of Supervisors would be putting the notice in papers.  
 
Commissioner Schafer asked what the criteria for the position are. 
 
Chairman Ishida stated that it was basically a member at large and that it’s a tremendous amount of political 
power that was used to help us get some of this money by putting environmental justice people on the commission 
so that should gives us an idea of where we are headed.  He also announced that on August 28th the Board of 
Supervisors will have a presentation on the General Plan from 2:00-5:00pm.  He hen said that the Board will 
adjourn at 5:00pm and reconvene at 7:00pm to consider the General Plan.   



 
9. Next meeting – Monday, September 10, 2012, 3:00 p.m. – Board of Supervisors Chambers 
 
 
10. Adjourn 
 

4:27pm 
 


